Minutes
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Wednesday, December 4%, 2024, at 4:00 PM at the school:

Roll Call: Mark Stichter, Walter McDonald, Robert Hurst, Mrs. Padron (board member/parent ligison), Pastor
Jhon Freddy Correa, Yolanda Flores, and Nick Yantorn.
The board chairman, Mark Stichter, welcomed visitors, including the school's attorney, Jeff Wood.

1.

oOh LN

Donna J. Beasley Mission Statement

To support students in achieving a high school diploma and prepare
them for college and career success through an individually paced,
technology-based, flexibly scheduled program.

Review of Public Notice- A notice was posted on the school's website.

Public Comments: none.

Approval of the minutes from the Meetings: November 6, 2024. Mr. Stichter asked if there were any comments,
corrections, or changes to the minutes. None were noted. The board voted 7-0 to approve the minutes.
New/Old items/ (tabled ltems the Board may want to consider from November 6, 2024):

a. Policy and Procedures Manual suggested changes.

1.

Attendance Policy (reviewed by Tripp Scott law firm): Mr. Wood stated that he worked collaboratively
with Dr. Torregrasso on this over a period of time and made some changes based on pushback from
the school district. The attendance policy is attached to these minutes. Mr. Stichter asked the board
if there were any questions regarding the attendance policy. Ms. Flores stated that she had-a
concern based on an email she received from the district regarding the district's visit to the school on
November 15%. She stated that it appeared that the district was asking for a more structured
attendance policy. She noted that the report showed that the school kept students who were
missing many days on the books for too-iong.

Dr. Torregrasso stated that truancy and academic history have been a concemn since the school
opened in 2013, He stated that he didn't believe that there would be a change anywhere in the near
future. He stated that he has spcoken with other principals and that this is a common theme. He
stated that there are seven at-risk high schools. He noted that the district only looks at the 24-25
school year cohort. He said they (the district) are not looking at Super seniors or everybody else. He
stated that the district wants us to withdraw some of these kids that are not coming. He also stated
that if you look at the attendance statements from the traditional schools where they were coming
from, their attendance is almost just as bad. He sfated that there is a double standard. He said that
we do one call and email, and we reach out to the families and do everything. It's a struggle that
we've had.

Ms. Flores stated that we need to put things in place. She noted that a student has been absent for
116 days during the school year. She asked at what point do we remove them from the roster-and
let them know that they can come back at any time. She stated that when she was a high school
principal, if a student missed 10 days during the semester, their credit would be withheld. They



would be put on a contract, and then there were certain things they needed to get done to eventually
get their credit before the end of the school year. She stated that there needs to be something in the
attendance policy to treat everyone equally, and you know where that line is.

Ms. Peters stated that they look at each student and see where they are academically. She said
they are more lenient to those students if they are closer to graduation. She stated that Ms.
Thomas, our attendance coordinator, is very proactive with attendance, and we are doing the very
best we can.

Mr. Renna stated that the school administration has done an excellent job increasing student
attendance over the past few years. He said our attendance rate for the first 10 years was about
35%. He stated that it has been up to about 55% for the past two years since adding an attendance
coordinator. He also stated that we are not perfect and can keep doing things to improve. He said
that we need to work with the district to improve attendance.

it was suggested that we have a written policy as part of the attendance policy that a structured plan
for withdrawal is in place. Is that 20 days or 40 days? It doesn't matter; we need it officially in the
attendance policy. The reason is that no one could come back and say, if you did something for
another student, why are you doing something different for my child? It was stated that what you do
for one, you do for all.

The board voted to approve the attendance policy, with the agreement that it be reviewed and
amended to address the issue of students missing so many days.

2. Emergency Closures (reviewed by Tripp Scott Law Firm): Mr. Wood stated there was some
confusion regarding this issue and point #3 on the agenda. He stated that he would have a policy
for board review at the next board meeting.

3. Fiscal responsibility (reviewed by Tripp Scott): see #2.

i. UseofPex Card
ii. Administrative Employees paid during emergency closure
fi. Loan to Staff Members (prohibition)

4. Procedure to vet new board members: Some ideas were discussed, such as having potential board
members attend two or three meetings before being placed on the board. Mr. Wood will put together
a suggested procedure and, once adopted, ensure it is in our bylaws.

5. The staging and unification plan needs board approval. (reviewed by Tripp Scott): Mr. Wood stated
that this is a new law. He pointed out that his firm did a “red line” review of the policy that was
brought to the board at the last meeting. He suggested that the board review this document and
bring it to the board at the next meeting.

b. Ms. Peter's raise request: Mr. Hurst motioned that Ms, Peters’ salary be raised to $90,000. He asked for
a second, and he asked for a discussion. Ms. Flores stated that before making this decision, there should .

2



be a better understanding of the school's financial situation. She also said that there needs to be a policy
in place that restricts giving raises during the school year.

Dr. Torregrasso pointed out that he received a payroll expense spreadsheet from Mr. Renna, which
showed payroll at 63% of the school budget for November. He stated that he reached out to SFS, which
pravided him with different numbers. The report from SFS showed that we paid only $7,300 in taxes and
not $$23,000, which is shown in the report from Mr. Renna. He asked Mr. Renna to explain the
difference. Mr. Renna opened the school's bank account on his phone and read off the withdrawals for
November. He stated that on November 1%, a line item stated ADP TAX in the amount of $10,948.28. He
continued to report that on November 18" there was a line item: ADP TAX for $12,543.27. He stated that
was where he got the information he put into the spreadsheet.

Mr. Renna reported that he found out yesterday that we will have to pay an additional $72,000 for the new
construction. He explained that FUGUA (the water company) had given our engineers the wrong
information regarding hook-up points for the water main. The engineer based their plans/drawings on what
they had received from FUGUA. They discovered the information was wrong, and we now need to run 310
feet of pipes. Mr. Renna also reminded the board that they approved an additional $132,000 in expenses
for the new facllity at the last meeting.

Mr. Renna presented a spreadsheet (attached see page 2) that Mr. Stichter had requested. He stated that
Ms. Peters would be making over $85,000 this year. He pointed out that the district assistant principals
make between $75,000 and $82,000 depending on different things. He also pointed out that of the other
at-risk high schools, three do not have assistant principals, and the other three have APs pay between
$60,000 and $81,000. Mr. Renna then explained that what Ms. Peters does for the schoo! is incredible.
He explained that over the years, he has seen what she does with our students. He stated that the board
has to weigh two things: 1. The financial facts and 2. your heart.

Ms. Peters stated that she doesn’t make anywhere near the $85,000 that Mr. Renna stated she makes.
Mr. Renna passed her most recent paycheck stub for December &th, which showed that she had already
received $82.127.50. One more paycheck is due in December for $3,347.50. That would bring her pay for
2024 to $85,475. It was pointed out that Ms. Peters does more than just the job of an AP. She is also the
schoo! counselor.

The board discussed the approved budget of 310 students and the actual enroilment of 286 students.
Without knowing our enroliment in February and the additional cost of the new building, it would not be
easy to project the available funds. It was also discussed that if our employees have signed contracts, why
would they change their salaries during the year? it was suggested that the board wait until the end of the
fiscal year to determine what funds are available. At that time, the board could vote to give Ms. Peters a
bonus for the year. The board voted to approve, waiting until the end of the school year to decide on this.



c. Fundraising Report: Ms. Chin presented her supplemental report for December 2024 {(attached). She
highlighted some of the items in her November report that were tabled. She thanked Pastor Nick for
helping her get in touch with the National Catholic Foundation. She reported about the awareness event,
She reported that 54 people registered, but only 41 people attended. She also reported that the mayor of
Ft. Myers attended. She stated that the event had a profit of $1,537.73. She then reported on the status of
the next fundraising event in April. The board voted to change her title to Director of Development and
Public Relations.

Ms. Flores reported that she had an opportunity to speak to Ms. Chin because she wanted to understand
her role. She stated that both Ms. Chin and CSCSI have grant writing as part of their jobs. She wanted to
understand the difference between the two. She then spoke about the awareness event and said it was a
very nice event. She pointed out the importance of development. She stated that this is a long process
and not just one year. She asked that there be clear expectations regarding Ms. Chin's job description
with items that can be measured so that there is a way to hold her accountable. She also stated that she
would like to see Ms. Chin come to the schaol a few days every week. Ms. Flores noted that grant writing
needs to be clearly understood.

Mr. Hurst asked Mr. Renna what grants we had received in the past five years. Mr. Renna reported the
following: Florida Agricultural/Foad/Nutrition grant for $47,421, Title IV part A for $8,285, ESSER |, Il and
il for over $500,000, Surnmer camp grant for $4,574, Civics grant for $1,027, Instructional Material grant
for $2,573, Safety and building security grant for $3,765, and a supplemental program grant for $10,633.

d. Busing Report: Mr. Renna reported that the cost to repair the bus was $3,980, and our insurance company
reimbursed us for $2,989. He also noted that Dr. Torregrasso reported his concemns at a previous board
meeting that they were putting over 180 miles a day on the bus. Mr. Renna worked with the company
whose software we use to make time more efficient. He pointed out that our bus route begins at 4:50 AM
and drops students off at school at 7:30. Some students can be on the bus for two and a half hours. He
reported that he was given a route that starts at 6:00 AM and drops students off at 7:25. He said he would
share that with Dr. Torregrasso to work with the bus driver to improve our current bus routes. (bus report
attached).

e. PTO Review: Mr. Stichter presented a spreadsheet that Mr. Renna had put together showing the PTO at
other at-risk charter high schools in the district. The spreadsheet showed that our school offers five sick
days and two PTO days. The other schools offer 10 PTO days, which the Lee County District also offers.
He explained that changing our policy would cost the school about $15,000 annually. There was a
discussion about being able to carry over PTO days and cashing out at the end of the year. ttwas
decided:

« Al employees will receive 10 days of PTO for this school year minus any already taken.
e No sick time, as it has been included with the PTO time

-



e Atthe end of June 30th, if there are any remaining days, for example, 10 days remaining, 5 days
rmust be carried forward, and five will be paid out. A minimum of 5 days will be required to be
carried forward if they are available.

« The maximum payout for any year will-be for 5 days.

Parent Surveys: Dr. Torregrasso provided the board with six parent surveys- two from 2024 and four from
2023. Mr. Renna will add these to the 15 that he and Ms. Chin have complied.

Use of PEX Card: Mr. Stichter reported that there had been some fallout between Mr. Renna and Dr.
Torregrasso regarding the use of the school PEX (petty cash) card. It was decided that our attorney, Mr.
Wood, would come up with a policy for the board to review and approve at the next meeting.

Review of CSCSI's contract:

Mr. Stichter began by stating that he doesn't take sides. He said that his sole focus is on the school
students and staff. He noted that was what drove his passion and many of his decisions. He continued to
state that it has been discussed with him that over the last three years, there's been an increasing lack of
trust in Mr. Renna and his company. Mr. Stichter pointed out that one of Mr. Renna's company’s
responsibilities is to build a yearly budget and keep it updated. He spoke about the school audit over the
past and how it has always come back stellar. He pointed out that we have always had a positive balance
each year and why that was important.

He reminded the board what he said at the last meeting regarding the five possible outcomes:
1. Mr. and Mrs. Renna leave their capacity as consultants.

Dr Torregrasso is terminated.

All three parties leave,

We find a way to return to the school's focus.

I

The school could close.

He stated that the air around the school, negativity, vilification, and acrimony have continued to impede our
effectiveness as a school. He said it's gotten to where Mr. Renna’s company has hired an attorney. He
spoke about the possibility of arbitration and how he spoke with Mr. Renna, but he was told that is not what
he wants to happen. He noted that Mr. Renna's company has put over 13 years into the school and how
difficult it would be to leave. He continued to state that with all the animosity and the negativity that he and
his wife are subjected to, it's got to end now. Mr. Stichter pointed out that he and Pastor Correa have
asked Dr. Torregrasso to sit and meet with Mr. and Mrs. Renna to work things out. Accarding to Mr.
Stichter, Dr. Torregrasso stated that he would no longer accept a conversation to try and work things out.

Mr. Stichter stated that when he presented the five options, he felt there was a 20% chance that we would
get to number 5 (closing the school). He now believes there is a 75% chance that the school will close
unless we can resolve this issue. He stated that he has had a meeting with a charter school management

5



company. He said that if Mr. Renna’s company successfully demands arbitration, the schoot will have to
pay him the balance of the five-year contracf, which he stated was four and a half years. He also stated
that the school could not pay the contract and hire an outside management company.

Mr. Stichter asked Dr, Torregrasso to reconsider the meeting and fry to resolve these issues, He asked the
board to tell Dr. Toregrasso to meet to resolve the issue, or they would ask for his resignation.

Mr. Hurst asked to address the hoard. He spoke about CSCSl being a subcontractor and an employee of
the school and stated that they have a fiduciary relationship with the school. He stated that the board
shaould have sent the contract to our atiorey, but they didn’'t. He noted that he believes that CSCSIi never
intended to honor this contract and work for five years. He said he understood Mr. Renna had already
spoken with other people about buying his contract. He stated that it happened immediately after he
signed it.

Mr. Renna stated that was not true. He said he began speaking with other management companies just
recently when he realized what was happening.

Mr. Hurst said he was glad to hear that. He continued to state that the relationship between Dr.
Torregrasso and CSCSI is toxic. He said he has asked both sides to work on bringing peace and tranquility
to the school, and he doesn't believe that will happen. He then stated that the school should terminate the
contract for cause and work out a satisfactory setllement with CSCSI. He continued to state that he has
never had a problem with Ron. He spoke about CSCSl's ability to sell their contract and how that bothered
him. He noted that Mr. Renna was “not above board” in his dealings with the school. He said he supported
Dr. Torregrasso and the staff. He stated that the board was not afforded the opportunity to have our’
attorney review the contract.

Mr. Stichter asked Mr. Wood to address the issue. He stated that the contract was not a management
contract but a consulting contract. He also said it is common for a school ta have a consulting agreement
in the charter industry. He stated that the contract is not “an arm's length contract.” He felt that it was a
little oo one-sided. He said that going to litigation or arbitration takes time and would cost a lot of money.
He stated that he believes there is a 75% chance that the schoo! will close if we go to litigation. He
continued to say that regardless of whether we like the contract, you approved it, and you will have to
follow it. He pointed out that one of the things it says is you have to give cause, and they have 60 days to
fixit. He said that without a good faith basis to terminate for cause, you run the risk of losing in any
litigation, and you will have to pay the attorney’s fees. He continued to point out that litigation will have a
consequence in the future. He said you would be looking at point five (closing the school) because the

schoot can't afford a knockdown fight.

He recommended that the board nominate one member to work with him, CSCSI, and their attorney. Mr.
Wood would serve as the go-between board member s0 that the board doesn't violate the Sunshine Law.



He stated that could take on a variety of forms. He reiterated that at the end of the day, if the school lost
the case, they would have to pay CSCSI $168,000 a year and attorney's fees, bankrupting the school.

He stated that a better course of action is to meet and try to negotiate a proper terminaticn of the
agreement. But then you have the prablem of who will do all the things that CSCSI was doing. He stated
that he has seen schools flounder because they didn’t realize all the stuff being done, and they have no
way to do it. He continues to point out that by terminating the agreement, you won't have to work with
CSCSI anymore, but you are going to have to factor into the process how to get those items done and how
to pay for them.

Mr, Wooed stated that if the board agrees fo allow him to wark with CSCSI and negotiate a severarnce
agreement that the school can afford, it will save the school from option number five.

Mr. Stichter, once again, asked if Dr. Tarregrasso would be willing to sit down with CSCSI and either
himself or Pastor Cortrea to see if there Is some way fo repair the damage before we take that route. Dr.
Torregrasso stated that he needed clarification on whom he would meet with. He asked if it was with a
cauple of board members or the whole board. He said that since everyone was there, it should be the
entire board instead of just a few people. Mr. Wood suggested that the board could hold a workshop, be
publicly noticed, and bring everything out into the open, but no decisions could be made during a
workshop.

Mr. Stichter pointed out thaf this isn't the first time he has had to mediate issues between Dr. Torregrasso
and Mr. Renna. He stated that he has had two or three meetings, and they were able to resoive the
problems and continue working for the school. He sald that he wanted what was best for the school and
that there had to be a way to figure out how to work together.

Mr. Hurst stated that we should just let Mr. Wood handle this. He noted that he didn’t feel this could be
worked out in a meeting between the parties. Mr. Renna stated that he didn’t believe a public meeting
where all the “dirty laundry” is open to the public would do the school any good.

Ms. Flores stated that she was new and still trying to figure out what was happening. She pointed out that
we have to go back to what the contract says and how to hold the parties accountable. She pointed out
that the contract did not include the scope of work. She said that without that, it would not be possible fo
hold anyone responsible. She said that she had a two-hour meeting with Mr. and Mrs. Renna in an effort
to find out what they do for the school. One of the questions she asked during the meeting was, who is Dr.
Torregrasso respansible for? She said she felt that everything about how the school is run is “loosey
goosey.” She asked who Dr. Torregrasso reports to. Who holds him accountable? She asked how it is
possible that the board can't talk to each other without violating the law but still hold CSCSI and the
principal accountable. She said that going forward, the school needs to make sure that any contract is
clearly defined.



Mr. Wood agreed with what was said and stated that was his plan going forward. He said, once you
replace CSCSI, who will hold Dr. Torregrasso and staff accountable? He stated that he had seen the list of
services that CSCSI does for the school and felt that CSCSI was providing a lot of deliverables. He didn’t
think that CSCSI was dishonest. He stated that someone needs to hold Dr. Torregrasso responsible for

what he does.

Mr. Renna stated that he felt the only option was to terminate CSCSI's relationship with the school.

Mr. Hurst volunteered to serve as the liaison between the school and CSCS!. A motion was made to have
Mr. Hurst work with Mr. Wood, CSCSI, and their attorney to develop a plan that would benefit all parties.
The motion was approved.

7. Board Member Mafters: None
8. Next board meetings: February 26%, June 181
9. Adjournment:



